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ADDENDUM I TO REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 3496 
 

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION THIRD-PARTY ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
  

ADDENDUM DATE:  December 6, 2023 
 
BUYER:     Jay Garrison, CPPO, CPPB 
 
ORIGINAL CLOSING DATE: December 19, 2023 at 2:00 PM  
 
See the following Questions and Answers: 

 
Question #1. In my web-searching for background on your plan, I come across different references to different record-

keepers.  Just so I’m consistent/relevant in my RFP Response – can you please clarify for me whether 
USI is the sole recordkeeper?  E.g., I also see references to Mission Square and Prudential. 

 
Answer #1. USI is the sole recordkeeper of all DC Services with the exception of Nationwide and the Knoxville 

Teachers Federal Credit Union as outside 457 (deferred compensation) plan providers.   
 

Question #2. How often are regular comparative analyses of investment options and fees desired?  
  
Answer #2. Quarterly Investment Options and Fees annually.   
 
Question #3. What is the desired frequency of on-site and remote participant meetings?  
  
Answer #3. As needed typically have 5 to 10 meetings a year but want to increase this in the future. 
 
Question #4. What is the expected frequency of new Board member orientation meetings?  
 
Answer #4. Once a year.  
 
Question #5. Is there a single point of contact for the retirement plans? If not, how many points of contact will there 

be?   
 
Answer #5.  Yes, Executive Director. 
 
Question #6. If payroll is outsourced, who is the provider? Do you desire 360-degree payroll integration?  
  
Answer #6. Payroll is processed in-house by the County. 
 
Question #7. Should recordkeepers submit questions separately from the investment advisory services? Or should 

Recordkeepers partner with an Investment Advisory Firm and respond to the RFP together as one 
submission?   

 
Answer #7. One Submission. 
 
Question #8. Can recordkeepers partner with multiple investment advisory firms? Or will Knox County award the 

recordkeeping separate from the investment advisory (i.e. 2 separate awards)?  
  

Answer #8. One Award. 
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Question #9. With regard to the language on page 10 of the RFP “NOTE: Subject to required KCRPB action, the 
selected provider will also be asked to assist in the consolidation of the 457 Plans. Participants would be 
permitted to keep funds invested with outside providers, but new contributions would be made to 
KCRPB’s single 457 Plan.”, it appears that the County currently has one 457(b) plan.  Can you please 
clarify which plans will be consolidated?  In addition, please clarify if the selected provider would be 
exclusive or if there will be multiple providers. 

Answer #9. Currently there are 2 outside 457 (Deferred Compensation) Plan providers.  After award, consolidate to 
offer only one 457 Plan to be administered by the winning bidder. Intent is to cease offering outside 
provider plans.   

Question #10. Please provide the total number of participants and active participants in the Asset Plan and the Sheriff’s 
Total Accumulation Retirement Plan. 

Answer #10. Asset – 4123, STAR – 398 Page 9 of RFQ. 

Question #11. Please provide the total number of participants in the Medical Expense Retirement Plan. 

Answer #11. 1084 page 10 of RFQ. 

Question #12. Please provide 3 year contribution history for all plans. 

Answer #12. See Attached files for applicable DC Plans (Asset, 457, MERP and STAR). 

Question #13. Please provide 3 year distribution history for all plans. 

Answer #13. See Attached files for applicable DC Plans (Asset, 457, MERP and STAR). 

Question #14. Is there any overlap in participants between plans? 

Answer #14. Yes 

Question #15. Please provide total number of unique participants. 

Answer #15. Not Available. Although there are exceptions in particular circumstances, in general, the Asset Plan 
covers a separate group of employees from STAR. MERP and 457 are voluntary plans available to both 
Asset and STAR participants. There are relatively few MERP, and 457 participants who do not participate 
in either Asset or STAR.  

Question #16. Please provide the plan level termination provisions on all stable value funds (i.e. Transamerica Stable 
Value Fund, Standard Stable Value, Federate Hermes Capital Preservation). 

Answer #16. All stable value contracts were consolidated into the Transamerica GA Stable Value, effective August 1, 
2023. Federated stable value contract scheduled to liquidate ~August 2024. Transamerica termination 
provisions as follows:  
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Question #17. Please provide a list of all funds with their account balances. 
  
Answer #17. See Attached files. 
 
Question #18. Please provide total assets in stability of principal for each stable value fund. 
 
Answer #18. See Attached files. 
 
Question #19. Does Knox County use an internal or external payroll system? Please provide the name of the 

software/system used.  
 
Answer #19. Internal – MUNIS & BENXL. 
 
Question #20. How many days of participant education is currently offered? Is there a preferred number of days 

requested?  
  
Answer #20. As needed - typically have 5 to 10 meetings a year but want to increase this in the future. 
 
Question #21. Are respondents expected to display the Defined Benefit plan on the defined contribution participant 

website? If so, would a file feed be provided?  
 
Answer #21. No. 
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Question #22. Please confirm the Medical Expense Retirement Plan (MERP) is a 401(a) plan and not 401(h).  
  
Answer #22. MERP is a 401(a) plan. 
 
Question #23. Please provide the plan document and adoption agreement for the MERP.  
  
Answer #23. MERP Plan document is housed in Knox County Employee Benefit System Document – Article VII.  Web 

site:  www.knoxcounty.org/retirement.  
 
Question #24. Will model portfolios continue to be used with the selected recordkeeper? Are these portfolios unitized?   
 
Answer #24. Portfolios can be used, deleted or new proposal. 
 
Question #25. What is the anticipated contract effective date?  
  
Answer #25. The anticipated start date is July 1, 2024.  However, this date is subject to change. 
 
Question #26. If the current Stable Value fund has a 12-month put provision, has the put notification been submitted, on 

what date?  
  
Answer #26. Stable value funds have all closed and remapped to Transamerica GA Stable Value, effective 8/1/2023. 
 
Question #27. Please provide a minimum of five years of the Stable Value fund cash flow history, including 

contributions, withdrawals, transfers in and transfers out? 
Example below: 

  
 Contributions Withdrawals Transfers In Transfers Out*   Total 

2018     0.00  
2019     0.00  
2020     0.00  
2021     0.00  
2022     0.00  

 
Answer #27. This information is not tabulated. Information about the stable value funds can be found in the notes to 

the retirement system audited financials. The last three years audited financials are attached. 
 
Question #28. Please provide the Stable Value funds year-end balance for the last 5 years. 
 
Answer #28. This information is not tabulated. Information about the stable value funds can be found in the notes to 

the retirement system audited financials. The last five years audited financials are attached. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:county.mayor@knoxcounty.org
http://www.knoxcounty.org/retirement


 
O FFICE OF COUNTY MAYO R GLENN JACO BS 

 
 

Procurement Division, 1000 N. Central Street, Suite 100, Knoxville, TN 37917 
 

 

knoxcounty.org/procurement •  phone  865.215.5777 •   fax 865.215.5778 
 

 
Question #29. Please provide the asset demographic data for the Stable Value fund broken down by ages (10 year 

increments, if possible) as well as by active versus inactive (terminated/retired employees), example 
below? 

 
 

 
___________________________________________________ 

 
Answer #29. This information is not tabulated. Information about the stable value funds can be found in the notes to 

the retirement system audited financials. The last five years audited financials are attached. 
 
Question #30. Describe your structure of contacts.  

• Is day-to-day contact centralized to a single point of contact? If not, please detail how many 
contacts. 

• Is payroll contact centralized to a single point of contact? If not, please detail how many contacts. 
 
Answer #30. The Executive Director has overall responsibility but assigns daily tasks to 5 staff members.  Payroll 

centralized to one person with 2 back up staff members.   
 
Question #31. Who calculates the employer contributions and at what frequency? 
 
Answer #31. BENXL, an in-house SQL system.  The retirement office receives MUNIS payroll files from the County 

and School uploads into BENXL and output file from BENXL is provided to Vendor.  Employers’ 
contributions are calculated during each payroll period. 

 
Question #32. Please respond to the following regarding your payroll processes. 

• What payroll vendor/software and applicable version is used today? 
• How is funding completed? (i.e. one ACH Credit initiation per plan) 
• What are the expected frequencies for financial files? (i.e. weekly, biweekly, semimonthly, monthly) 
o How many financial files are sent with each frequency? 
o How many demographic files are sent with each frequency? 

• What is the total number of financial vs demographic files expected to be remitted annually? 
• If payroll is decentralized, have there been any discussions on combining the payroll files?  
o Would you be open to consolidating to one single financial and one single demographic file? 
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Answer #32. MUNIS version 2019.1.22, soon to be updated to 2021.8.1 and BENXL 
 Wires are sent 
 Weekly 
 County is on a biweekly payroll and Schools have 2 bi-weekly payrolls paid opposite weeks and a 

monthly payroll.  So, we have one or two payroll files a week based on County and Schools.  Extracts are 
sent by County or Schools and also by plan.  

 All  payroll files have demographic and financial information. 
 
Question #33. What percentage of employees have company email addresses? 

• Are personal email addresses captured for employees that do not have a company email address? 
• Will all email addresses be sent on the incoming files? 
• What percentage of participants have a valid email address on file at the current recordkeeper? 

 
Answer #33. Not sure at least 50%, email addresses are not captured at this time from payroll files. 
 When a participant signs into Vendor Web Site, email is captured by provider at that time. 
 
Question #34. What is your average annual employee turnover rate? 
 
Answer #34. Not Available 
 
Question #35. Please fill out the following table for each plan. 

 
 Asset Plan STAR Plan 457(b) Plan MERP 
Participant Counts ~ ~ ~ ~ 
  Active w/ balance   927 793 
  Termed w/ balance   247  
  Total Eligible 
  Regardless if they are participating     
Cash Flow  ~ ~ ~ ~ 
  2022 Employer 
Contributions     

  2022 Employee 
Contributions     

  2022 Rollover Contributions     
  2022 Withdrawals     
  2021 Employer 
Contributions     

  2021 Employee 
Contributions     

  2021 Rollover Contributions     
  2021 Withdrawals     
  2020 Employer 
Contributions         

  2020 Employee 
Contributions     

  2020 Rollover Contributions     
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 Asset Plan STAR Plan 457(b) Plan MERP 
  2020 Withdrawals     
Avg. Annual Transactions  ~ ~ ~ ~ 
  Distributions     
  In-Service     
  Unforeseeable Emergencies     
  Installments     
  Loan Initiations     
  RMDs     

 
 

Answer #35. Most of this information is included in the attachments.  See Attached files for applicable DC Plans 
(Asset, 457, MERP and STAR). 

 
Question #36. What is the preferred date for transfer of assets? Is there flexibility with this date/timeframe? 
 
Answer #36. 7/1/2024 or as soon thereafter as practical. 
 
Question #37. Provide the fund line-ups for each plan separately with tickers/CUSIPs, assets by fund, and detail any liquidity 

concerns, such as puts/MVAs. 
 
Answer #37. All plans have the same investment options as provided on page 18 of RFQ.  Funds are self-directed with 

an age-appropriate target date fund as default for all plans. 
 
Question #38. Are there any liquidity concerns we need to be aware of such as puts/MVAs? If so, please provide further details.  
 
Answer #38. MVAs associated with early withdrawal from stable value funds will be absorbed by Transamerica over 5 

years. Federated Stable Value to be liquidated ~ August 2024. Also, see response to #16.  
 
Question #39. Do the plans offer managed accounts today?  If so, can you please provide the total assets and number of 

participants using the service? 
 
Answer #39. Participants electing to participate in the Nationwide 457 plan have managed account options and 

relatively few participants have elected that option.  
 
Question #40. Are you able to provide the fees being charged by the current recordkeeper? 
 
Answer #40. No. 
 
Question #41. Please confirm which plans are included in this RFQ, and provide the information requested below based 

on the plans the County is including.  The Closed Defined Benefit plan, later identified as a 401a plan, as 
well as the Uniformed Officers Pension Plan, also identified as a 401a plan, are mentioned in several 
documents but plan statistics are not provided for these plans. 

 
Answer #41. Asset Accumulation Plan, STAR, Deferred Compensation Plan (457), and MERP are all Defined 

Contribution plans under this bid.  The Closed Defined Benefit Plan and Uniformed Officers Pension Plan 
are Defined Benefit Plans that are NOT included in this Bid.  Only DC Services are under review. 
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Question #42. Will the County continue to determine employee eligibility for each of the plans?  Or is this procedure 

going to be a function of the recordkeeper going forward? 
 
Answer #42. Yes, always determined by the Retirement Office 
 
Question #43. How are loan repayments made back to the plan?  ACH or Payroll deduct?  Can you share your current 

loan policy? 
 
Answer #43. Loan repayments are by payroll deduction only.  Loan policy is located on the website at:  

www.knoxcounty.org/retirement.    
 
Question #44. Is payroll centralized in the County for all plans, or will each plan have its own payroll center?  What is the 

frequency of payroll and the current submission method? 
 
Answer #44. See #31. 
 
Question #45. Can you please provide the total number of unique participants (active, retired, termed, beneficiaries) with 

a balance across all plans included in this RFQ? 
 
Answer #45. Not available. 
 
Question #46. Can you please provide the total number of loans outstanding? 
 
Answer #46. 307. 
 
Question #47. Can you please provide the total number of self-directed brokerage accounts, if offered? If not offered, is 

the County interested in offering a self-directed brokerage option going forward? 
 
Answer #47. None. 
 
Question #48. Can you please provide a breakdown of plan assets by investment and/or update the current-to-proposed 

mapping RFQ document with this information? 
 
Answer #48. See Attached files for applicable DC Plans (Asset, 457, MERP and STAR). 
 
Question #49. Are any assets or investments subject to termination/surrender charges, market value adjustments 

(MVA), or put periods? If so, please identify the specific assets/investments and indicate if multiple 
termination options are available to the plan (for example: MVA or X-month put or installment payout). For 
any assets subject to a termination/surrender charge or MVA, please provide an estimate of that amount. 

 
Answer #49. None at the participant level. However, there are limitations associated with the Nationwide 457 stable 

value fund.  
 
Question #50. Can you please provide the total County + Employee contributions for 2021, 2022 and through 

6/30/2023? The current data looks to include only County contributions through 6/30/2023. 
 
Answer #50. See Attached files for applicable DC Plans (Asset, 457, MERP and STAR). 
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Question #51. Can you please provide any assets using professionally managed account services, if offered? 
 
Answer #51. None, except for the managed account offered by Nationwide under its 457 plan.  
 
Question #52. Does the County have a desired number of onsite participant education days? How many education days 

does the County receive from USI currently? 
 
Answer #52. See answer #3. 
 
Question #53. Does the County have a desired number of onsite participant education days? How many education days 

does the County receive from USI currently? 
 
Answer #53. See answer #3. 
 
Question #54. Can you please provide the number of participants currently receiving statements electronically? 
 
Answer #54. Everyone received their statements electronically on the Web Site.  Participants can elect to receive 

quarterly paper statements. 
 
Question #55. Specific to the County's Fixed Income Custom Portfolio, can you please confirm that at least one of the 

underlying investments outside of the Standard Stable Value 5 is a fully liquid cash investment to allow for 
penalty-free daily transactions within the portfolio? 

  
Answer #55. Portfolios are fully liquid. 
 
Question #56. Can the County please provide additional information on how it bears the cost of administrative services 

for the Plans today? Given that the desire is to offer an institutional investment lineup that doesn’t 
generate revenue sharing, does the County include the cost of recordkeeping and administration in its 
budget? 

  
Answer #56. The County pays for most plan expenses, small administrative fees are charged to plan participants. 
 
Question #57. Will the County accept a proposal for just Recordkeeping? Providing the County the flexibility to utilize an 

investment consultant of their choice.  
  
Answer #57. No 
 
Question #58. Does under the current structure, is USI providing both Recordkeeping and investment advisor Services 

under one contract or is it two separate contracts respectively? 
 
Answer #58. Going forward, there will be a single contract for both recordkeeping and investment consulting.  
 
Question #59. In your core investment lineup provided, “Standard Stable Value 3” is identified. Can you please provide, 

the funds crediting rate, liquidity provisions and withdrawal restrictions, (i.e. – 12month put) 
 
Answer #59. Stable value funds have all closed and remapped to Transamerica GA Stable Value, effective 8/1/2023.  

No restrictions. Crediting rate is 3.62% through December 31, 2023.  
 
Question #60. Are the six listed Portfolio Models fully mappable and liquid, or would those have restrictions due to the 

various stable value funds listed in the respective models? 
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Answer #60. Fully mappable and Liquid except for the stable value fund – see response to #16 for details.  
 
Question #61. For the Portfolios: Aggressive Portfolio, Balanced Portfolio, Moderate Portfolio, Conservative Portfolio, 

Fixed Income Portfolio 
 Are these portfolios currently being unitized? 

 Who is responsible for the unitization 

 Who provides the fund performance 

 Who provides the fact sheets 
 
Answer #61. Yes. 
 Participant Elected, default prior to 7/1/2023 was Balanced Portfolio now it is age-appropriate Target Date 

Fund. 

Question #62. Please provide the CUSIP for the following existing funds: 

    
9/30/23 Assets Fund Ticker/Cusip Net Exp Ratio 

  Standard Stable Value 3   0.60% 

Aggressive Portfolio 
  GG CIT III for MetLife GAC 25554 CL 75   1.14% 

Balanced Portfolio 
  Transamerica Stable Value   0.75% 

Moderate Portfolio 
  Federated Hermes Capital Pres ISP   0.70% 

Conservative Portfolio 
  Diversified Stable Value   0.50% 

Fixed Income Portfolio 
  Standard Stable Value 5   0.80% 

 
Answer #62. No longer used mapped to Transamerica GA Stable Value 

Question #63. Please provide the total number of participant accounts with a balance (active + inactive) in the 
Government 401(a) plan with $388M in assets 

Answer #63. See Attached files for applicable DC Plans (Asset, 457, MERP and STAR) 
 
Question #64. Please provide the FY23 County Disbursement amount from the Government 401(a) plan. 
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Answer #64. See Attached files for applicable DC Plans (Asset, 457, MERP and STAR). 
 
Question #65. Please provide the amount of managed account assets in the Government 401(a) plan, if any. 
 
Answer #65. None. 
 
Question #66. Please provide the amount of outstanding loans in the Government 401(a) plan, if any. 
 
Answer #66. 307 Loans with Outstanding Balance of $3.4 Million. 
 
Question #67. Please provide the amount of assets in a Stable Value Fund in the Government 401(a) plan. 
 
Answer #67. Other than the TransAmerica investment in the portfolios, none. 

Question #68. Please provide the total number of participant accounts with a balance (active + inactive) in the STAR 
plan 

Answer #68. See Attached files for applicable DC Plans (Asset, 457, MERP and STAR). 

Question #69. Please provide the FY23 Disbursement amount from the STAR plan. 

Answer #69. See Attached files for applicable DC Plans (Asset, 457, MERP and STAR). 
 
Question #70. Please provide the amount of managed account assets in STAR plan, if any. 
 
Answer #70. None. 
 
Question #71. Please provide the amount of outstanding loans in the STAR plan, if any. 
 
Answer #71. None, per policy you have to be 100% vested.  1/1/2024 some participants will be eligible. 
 
Question #72. Please provide the amount of assets in a Stable Value Fund in the STAR plan. 
 
Answer #72. Other than the TransAmerica investment in the portfolios, none. 
 
Question #73. Please provide the FY23 Disbursement amount from the 457 plan. 
 
Answer #73. See Attached files for applicable DC Plans (Asset, 457, MERP and STAR). 
 
Question #74. Please provide the FY23 Contribution amount to the 457 from the active participants 
 
Answer #74. See Attached files for applicable DC Plans (Asset, 457, MERP and STAR). 
 
Question #75. Please provide the amount of managed account assets in 457 plan, if any. 
 
Answer #75. Except a few participants in the Nationwide 457 Plan, none.  
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Question #76. Please provide the amount of outstanding loans in the 457 plan, if any. 

Answer #76. None, no loan policy for 457 Plan. 

Question #77. Please provide the amount of assets in a Stable Value Fund in the 457 plan. 

Answer #77. Other than the TransAmerica investment in the portfolios and the fixed account in the Nationwide 457 
Plan, none. 

Question #78. Is the Asset Accumulation Plan mentioned in the Deferred Compensation Plan (457 Plan) box different 
from one of the 4 plans described in the document?  If so, please provide assets, participants, 
contributions, disbursements, loans, managed accounts and Stable Value assets. 

Answer #78. No. 

Question #79. Please provide the FY23 Disbursement amount from the MERP plan. 

Answer #79. See Attached files for applicable DC Plans (Asset, 457, MERP and STAR). 

Question #80. Please provide the amount of managed account assets in MERP plan, if any. 

Answer #80. None. 

Question #81. Please provide the amount of outstanding loans in the MERP plan, if any. 

Answer #81. None, no loan policy for MERP plan. 

Question #82. Please provide the amount of assets in a Stable Value Fund in the MERP plan. 

Answer #82. Other than the TransAmerica investment in the portfolios, none.  

Question #83. Please provide a Plan Document for the MERP plan. 

Answer #83. See #23. 

Question #84. Please provide the total number of unique SSNs across all plans. 

Answer #84. Not Available. 

Question #85. What level of participant education are you receiving today from your vendor? How many participant 
education meetings and group meetings were conducted in FY2023? 

Answer #85. See #3. 

Question #86. Please provide a Plan-level quarterly statement for each plan. 

Answer #86. There is not a quarterly statement per Plan, but see attachments for additional information by Plan. 
 

Question #87. On pages 9 & 10, the RFQ lists plan information. For the Asset Accumulation Plan and Sherrif’s Total 
Accumulation Plan (STAR) on page 9, can you please list the total participant count, including how many 
are terminated employees vs. actively contributing employees, as you did for the Deferred Compensation 
Plan (457 Plan) on page 10? Does the MERP plan have retired/termed/beneficiaries? 

 
Answer #87. Yes, see Attached files. 
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Question #88. For all four plans listed on pages 9 & 10, can you please list the employee contributions if that’s not 
included in the “County Contributions”? 

 
Answer #88. See Attached files for applicable DC Plans (Asset, 457, MERP and STAR). 
 
Question #89 For all four plans listed on pages 9 & 10, when is the match funded? Would you need support from your 

provider to calculate the match? 
 
Answer #89.   Match is funded at each payroll.  The retirement office calculates the Match, the provider would not.   
 
Question #90. For the Asset Accumulation Plan and Sherrif’s Total Accumulation Plan (STAR) on page 9, can you 

please share how many participant loans are currently outstanding? 
 
Answer #90. 306 in the Asset Plan. Currently Zero for STAR, participants have not met eligibility criteria yet. 
 
Question #91. On page 18, you ask to map Knox County’s current funds to our proposed investment lineup. Column A, 

which lists the 9/30/23 Asset Balance, is blank. Would you like to provide the balance in each fund so 
respondents can provide KCRPB their total fund expense? 

 
Answer #91. Net Expense Ratios are provided. 
 
Question #92. On page 19, the RFQ mentions “Investment line-up and changes in managers are reviewed with the 

KCRPB Investment Committee and determined by the Board”. This is non-discretionary investment 
advisory services (referred to as 3(21) co-fiduciary) where an advisor provides recommendations and the 
KCRPB retains investment liability for any decisions they approve. An alternative option is discretionary 
investment advisory services (referred to as a 3(38) fiduciary investment management) where an advisor 
executes investment changes and then informs KCRPB of any changes. In this model, the advisor 
accepts liability for investment changes, which would reduce risk for KCRPB. Is the Committee open to 
evaluating both non-discretionary and discretionary advisory services in this RFQ? 

 
Answer #92. Yes. 
 
Question #93. On page 23, #18 of the Scope of Services Addendum states “Coordinate with auditors, including 

preparation and organization of requested Plan records.” Can you please share what current audit 
requirements are needed so that we can properly speak to how we would support this request? 

 
Answer #93. Provide Investment Policies, Trust Statements, Allocation Reports (plan activity by investment category 

and individual funds), Fiduciary Oversight Review, Census Reports, Distributions Reports, Loan Reports, 
Distribution supporting documents, SOC and Bridge Letters, and Financial Statements.  This may not be 
an inclusive list as auditors can request any financial information to support the audit. 

 
End of addendum. 

 
Jay Garrison, CPPO, CPPB 
Procurement Coordinator 
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